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THE TRAVELLERS' GUIDE

FROM

l^Q^l^a M^\^ ti> agujjtl^ag.

Niagara Falls, being the great centre of attraction for all Nor-
thern tourists, and the point at which travellers from the United
States, who intend taking a trip down Lake Ontario and the
St. Lawrence make their entry into Her Majesty's Dominions,
we select it as our starting point, and supposing that the reader
(without our aid) has already done the Falls and neighborhood to
his satisfaction, and, in all probability, has in turn been done to
his c^iVsatisfaction, we will mercifully omit all mention of the
wonders of Niagara, and proceed at once to

LEWISTON,

a beautifully situated town, about 7 miles from the Falls, on the
Niagara Eiver. It is a place of considerable importance, and
stands at the head of navigation on the river. In 1813 it was
destroyed by the British, and rebuilt after the termination of the
war. At this place the tourist embarks on board a splendid
steamboat (the City of Toronto) which runs twice a day between
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this point and Toronto. On the opposite side of the river stands

the village of

QUEENSTOWN,

A small, picturesque town, not of much commercial importance,
but noted on account of the memorable battle that took place on
the neighboring heights in 1812, when the British most gallantly

defeated the enemy, and drove them across the river. Just above
the village stands (visible from the deck of the steamer)

BROCK'S MONUMENT.

This monument was raised in commemoration of the British

General, Sir Isaac Brock, who fell in the sanguinary action above
mentioned. His remains, and those of his aide-de-camp, Colonel

John McDonald, who died of wounds received in the same
battle, are buried here. The first monument was completed

in 1826, and was blown up in 1840, by a miscreant named Lett,

who was afterwards imprisoned for this dastardly act. The pre-

sent handsome shaft was erected in 1853, Its height is 185 feet

;

the base is 40 feet square by 30 feet high ; the shaft is of free-

stone, fluted, 75 feet high and 30 feet in circumference, sur-

mounted by a Corinthian capital, on which stands a statue of
the gallant general. The view from this monument is most gor-

geous. The eye wauders with untiring delight over the richest

imaginable scene of woodland and water. Below flows the now
tranquil River Niagara—calm and majestic in its recovered sere-

nity . In the far distance, on either side, stretches the richly

wooded landscape, speckled wtih villas and cottages. The whole
view is terminated by the magnificent sheet of Lake Ontario,

which stretches away, like a flood of light, to the horizon.

NIAGARA TOWN,

Stands on the Canada shore, at the mouth of the river, facing

Lake Ontario on the one side and the river on the other. It was
at one time the seat of Government for Upper Canada, and the
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principal commercial town. Its surroundings are full of varied

and historical associations. The drives in the vicinity are most

refreshing, and the scenery beautiful. Latterly it has become

quite a fashionable summer resort. A large new hotel, located

in a beautiful grove on the banks of the river, affords ample ac-

commodation to visitors. On the American side of the river is

FORT NIAGARA,

Which has many historical associations, but which we have not

space to touch upon. The English General Prideaux fell here in

the battle of 24th July, 1759, and the French garrison afterwards

surrendered to Sir Wm. Johnson. Leaving Niagara, about four

hours's sail brings the traveller to

TORONTO,

The principal City of the Province of Ontario. It is situated

on Toronto Bay, a beautiful sheet of water, four milos in length

by two miles in width. Toronto^ signifies in the Indian language,

a place of meeting.

In 1823, it contained but 4,000 inhabitants ; now, it has a

population of about 75,000. Although not picturesque, it is

most agreeably situated ; the view from the western entrance to

the harbor, and from the inland, is varied and striking; the

spires and cupolas afford a most agreeable diversity to the dis-

tant outlines of the City, and mark it as a place of wealth ai^J

enterprise. The long lines of houses, and the rectangular blocks

of buildings, intersected by. streets running towards the four

cardinal points of the compass, with here and there a handsome

church or an elegant edifice, strike the eye of the stranger with

an agreeable surprise.

Young in years, it has none of the associations which render

Quebec almost classical ; but it is as proud of its beautiful bay

and aquatic sports, as Quebec is of its ancient walls and citadel.

Among the places of interest are

—

The Queens Park, the College Avenue, University Buildings,
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Trinity College, the Normal and Model Schools, Osgoodo Hall
Upper Canada College, St. James Cathedral, St, Michael's Ca-
thedral, Knox's Church, Metropolitan Church, Provincial Luna-
tic Asylum, St Lawrence Hall and Market, Lieut.-Governor's
Kesidence, &o.

One of the elegant steamers ot the Canadian Inland Steam
Navigation Co.'s line, leaves Toronto every day for Montreal
Travellers can go on board, obtain their staterooms, and make
^e passage by the Lake ; or, if they prefer it, can go by Grand
Trunk Railwajr to Kingston, and there take the steamer. We
will now describe the Tov;us on the route in their natural order.
The first port at which the steamer touches after leaving Toronto
is

PORT HOPE.
The location of this town is very pleasant, the site extending

over a valley and the surrounding hills, and though owing to
natural obstructions, it is rather irregularly laid out, the appear-
ance it presents, viewed either from the lake, or any other
avenue of approach, is very picturesque. A steamer plies regu-
larly between this port and Rochester, N. Y. Population of the
town about 6,000.

CO'BOURG,
The next stopping place, lies seven miles below Port Hope. The
town, which is lit with gas, is very prettily laid out. The broad
and spacious streets,*for the most part intersecting each other at
right angles, are adorned with several fine public buildiags, and
numerous elegant residences. The most noticeable amongst the
former are, Victoria Hall, (containing the Town Hall, Corpora-
tion and County Offices, erected at a cost of over $100,000,)
the Churches of the various denominations, and Victoria Col-
lie. The latter is under the management of the Wesleyan
Methodist Church in Canada. It has faculties of law and
medicine in Montreal and Toronto. Cobourg has a population
of about 6,000. Midway between Port Hope and Cobourg is
** Duck Island," on which is placed a Government light house.
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KINGSTON

Is pleasantly situated at the head of the Thousand Islands,

River St. Lawrence, where Lake Ontario, the last link of the

chain of the inland seas of the west, together with the Bay of

Quinte and the great Cataraqui Creek, are united with the

mighty channel which conveys and empties their waters into the

Gulf of St. Lawrence.

It occupies the site of the old French fort of Frontenac. As a

place of defence it stands next in strength to Quebec. The bat-

teries of Fort Henry are calculated for the reception of numer-

ous cannon and mortars of the largest calibre. These, together

with neighboring martollo towers, form a formidable and efficient

defence against any aggressive movement which might be directed

against the city. Opposite Kingston are Wolfe and Garden

Islands, between which and the city lies the bay, a beautiful

sheet of water. On the other side of the Islands is Cape Vincent,

in the State of New York.

Kingston possesses two colleges, and has several handsome

public buildings, such as the Court House, Custom House, City

Hall, Banks, Post Office, &c. The population is about 15,000.

Adjacent to the city is Portsmouth, where are located the Pro-

vincial Penitentiary and Rockwood Lunatic Asylum.

Before proceeding down the St. Lawrence, we will briefly

notice the principal ports on the American side of Lake Ontario.

CHARLOTTESVILLE,

At the mouth of the Genesee River, is the port of entry for the

City of Rochester. The river is navigable for steamers five miles

from its mouth, as far as Carthage, whence passengers can take

the railroad cars for Rochester, two miles distant. The next

port, after leaving Charlottesville, is

OSWEGO,

A beautiful and flourishing town. It is the commercial centre
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Montreal, June 11, 1874.

Messrs. H. WHITESIDE & Co.,

Gbmtlbmbn,

After selling your valuable " Spring B«d," for four years I have to state

that I find it far superior to anything ever introduced into the market. Its durability

^

perfect noiseltssness, cheapness, and its neat and cleanly appearance have commended it

to all customers; firom whom I have only assurances of utmost satisfaction,

Faithfully yours

C. B. PARISEAU,

Wholesale &, Retail Dealer in Furniture,

447 & 449 Notre Dame Street.

W^HITESIDE'S

^nfiHf OiPiai ®,
IS SOLD BY

ALL rUENITURE HOUSES THROUGHOUT CANADA.

Office, Factory and Warerooms,

(OLD COLLEGE BUILDINGS),

Ivl01SrTr=lII3.A.ILi-
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of a fertile and wealthy part of the country, and contains some of
the largest flouring mills in the world. It is the terminus of
both a railroad and a canal, connecting it with Syracuse and the

New York Central Railroad. The population is about 20,000.

SACKETT'S HARBOR,

A small town lying on a spacious bay, is 45 miles below Oswego.
It was founded in 1799 by a Mr. Sackett, of Jamaica, L. I.,

from whom it took its name. From its position on Lake Ontario,

it is admirably suited for the purposes of a naval station, and
was, in fact, the American headquarters of the Lake Ontario
fleet in the war of 1812. It is now the seat of a military post,

called *' Madison Barracks."

CAPE VINCENT

Is a pleasant little town, lying at the head of the St. Lawrence,
so named in honor of one of th6 pioneer settlers—M. Vincent
Le Roy De Chaumont. It is said that this place was selected as

the retreat of the Emperor Napoleon, in case he should be obliged

to seek an asylum in the United States. Cape Vincent is con-

nected by railroad with Chaumont, Brownvillo, Watertown and
Rome.

THE THOUSAND ISLANDS.

The Lake of the Thousand Islands is an expansion of the St.

Lawrence, at its emergence from Lake Ontario. It is the most
numerous collection of river islands in the world. It commences
a little below Kingston, and stretches down the river between 40
and 50 miles, for which distance the St. Lawrence is between 6

and 12 miles wide. Notwithstanding their name, the number of

these islands far exceeds a thousand; there being at least

1,500. They lie partly in Canada, and partly within the bounds

of the State of New York ; the boundary line between the United

States and Canada dividing them into about equal parts.

Nowhere in the world is a more beautiful scene presented to the
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eyes of the traveller than here. As the steamboat is piloted
through the intricate channels, dodging here and there among
the islands, showing each moment new and ever-varying beauties,
the scene is beautiful beyond description. Islands of all sizes
and shapes are scattered in profusion throughout the waters;
some covered with vegetation, others bare and ragged rocks;
some many acres in extent, others measuring but a few feet

j

some showing a bare, bald head, a !ittle above the level of the
water, while, a short distance off, a large island or rock, crowned
with a considerable growth of pine or cedar, will rise abruptly out
of the water, to the height, probably, of 100 feet or more. This
is a famous spot for sporting; myriads of wild fowl of all des-
criptions may here be found ; and angling is said to be rather
fatiguing than otherwise, from the great number and size of the
fish. On the American shore, opposite the Thousand Islands, is

situated

CLAYTOIT.

A village^ formerly of considerable importance as a lumber
station. This is a favorite resort for fishing and shooting parties,
who make it head quarters while pursuing their sport. Oppo-
site, on the Canadian side of the river, is

GANANOQUE.

A flourishing town of about 3,000 inhabitants. The beauty
of the islands and river, as seen from this point, cannot be sur-
passed. During the last five years it has become quite a favor-
ite resort for tourists and pleasure seekers. From its position
it has almost unlimited water power, which has been so far
utilized that the town is now one of the most flourishing manufac-
turing towns in the Province. After leaving Gananoque, the
next port, on the American side, is the little, rock-perched town
of

ALEXANDRIA.

The situation of which is extremely picturesque and romantic.
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Prescott, Canada.

This House has been recently enlarged and re-furnished and is

now second to none in the Dominion The long experience of the

Proprietor in catering to the wants of his guests enables him. to

guarantee to patrons, every comfort and accommodation that any

first-class house can offer.

TOURISTS AND PLEASURE SEEKERS

will find this House a most desirable resort, situated, as It is, on the

shore of the beautiful St. Lawrence, a short distance from the

Thousand Islands, and surrounded with choice fishing grounds and

unsurpassed scenery.

FOUR FIRST-CLASS STEAMERS

continually cross between this port and the City of Ogdensburg,

making a trip every thirty minutes.

L H. DANIELS,
Proprietor,
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Some two or three miles below the village is a point from whence
one hundred islands can be seen at one view, the beauty of

which can scarcely be imagined. This is a fine fishing ground,

noted for its maskalonge, which are of large size, many of them
weighing from 40 to 50 pounds, and often as much as 70 pounds.

They are taken with trolling lines, and it requires considerable

skill to land one safely. At the the foot of the Lake of the

Thousand Islands, on the Canadian shore, lies the town of

BROCKVILLE.

So named in honor of General Brock, who fell in battle at

Queenston Heights, in 1812. This is one of the most pleasant

towns on the river. It is a delightful resting place for travellers,

a favorite resort for tourists, and a desirable home for permanent

residents. All the steamers stop here. A steam ferry boat plies

every half-hour between this place and

MORRISTOWN,

a pretty little village on the opposite side of the river. Twelve
miles below Morristown, also on the American side, is situated

the beautiful City of
OGDENSBURa,

one of the most wealthy cities, of its size, in the State of New
York. The streets are wide, and lined with beautiful shade

trees ; the public buildings very fine, and some of the private

residences are magnificent. It is a great resort during the

summer season for pleasure seekers, and being the terminus of

the Ogdensburg and Rome Railroad, it is one of the principal

points for travellers to take the steamers down the Rapids, for

Montreal. Immediately opposite Ogdensburg, and connected

with it by a steam ferry, is

PRESCOTT,

A town of about 3,000 inhabitants. About a mile below the

town, at a place called " Windmill Point," are the ruins of an
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CASH ASSETS (July ist,) - - - $2,937,000.

Grants everything desirable in
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ON THE MOST FAVOURABLE TERMS.

ACCIDENT DEPARTMENT.

General Accident Policies are written for a term of one to twelve

months each, and insure a sum of|5CO to 1 10.000 against death by acci-

dent, and $3 to I50 weekly indemnity for wholly disabling injury by
accident (not to exceed twenty-six weeks for any one accident,) at an
annual cost of ,$5 to |io per thousand for occupations not specially

hazardous. Hazardous risks taken at higher rates.

LIFE DEPARTMENT.
All Policies non-forfeitable. Its ten, fifteen, and twenty year policies

can'.be converted into endowments, at the option of the insurant. This
feature is original with this company.

G. Batterson, President. | RoDNLi^ Denis, Secretary

W. E. Scott, M.D., Surgeon.

Foster, Wells & Brinley, General Agents for Dominion.

Office—199 St. James Street, Montreal.
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old stone windmill, in which, in 1837, the rebels, under Von
Schulz, a Polish exile, established themselves, but from which
they were driven with severe loss. Daniel's Hotel an establish-

ment kept in first class city style will afford those who may desire

to spend a day or two at this place, as good fare and as comfortable

a home for the time being as can be found anywhere. L. H.
Daniels Esq., the proprietor, thoroughly understands how to keep

an hotel, and never fails to give his guests satisfaction. It is

worth while to remain a day or two in Prescott if only to have

the pleasure of being entertained at this House. It has for years

been a favorite resting place for travellers. Prescott is the southern

terminus of the St. Lawrence and Ottawa Railroad, which con-

nects Ottawa—(the capital of the Dominion)— with the frontier.

About five miles below Prescott, is Chimney Island, on which
the remains bf an old Frefich fortification are to be seen. The
first rapid of the St. Lawrence is at this island, called the

GALOP RAPIDS.

The next town, on the American side, is Waddington, and;in
the river, over against it, Ogden Island, from the name of its

proprietor. On tbe Canada side is Morrisburg. A short dis-

tance below Morristown is Chrysler's Farm, where an American
force was met, on its descent to Montreal, in 1813, defeated and
turned back by a detachment of British troops. Thirty miles

below Ogdensburg is Louisville, from whence stages run to Mas-
sena Springs—distance, seven miles. These springs are said to

have proved effectual in restoring debilitated constitutions.

LONG SAULT RAPIDS'

For some miles after passing the town of Prescott, the scenery

of the river rapidly changes. Then commences that magnificent

series of ra^iids of which the Lono* Sault is one of the most re-

markable. It is a continuous rapid of about nine miles in length,

divided by an island in the centre into two channels—the Amer-
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IPXTT STE.EET,
Cornwall, Ont.,

Unquestionably the best Hotel between Montreal and

Toronto.

Has all the Modern Improvements,

FIEST-OLASS IN EYEEY EESPEOT.

Tourists will find this a delightful resting place.

FISHING AND SHOOTING REQUISITES,

HORSES, CARRIAGES, BOATS, Xc.

Can be procured for the use of Guests.

W. H. DTJIifKIK",
r

PROPRIETOR,

< ^m^
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lean channel and the Lost channel ; a name given to it hy the

French hoatmen, as they supposed that if a boat drifted into it,

it would certainly be lost. Formerly the American or East chan-

nel was mostly run by steamers, but of late the Lost Channel

is mostly used. This channel presents a grand and terrific

appearance, the water being lashed into a white foam for several

miles- The passage on the southern channel is very narrow, and

such is the velocity of the current, that a raft, it is said, will

drift the nine miles in forty minutes. When a steamer enters

within their influence, the steam is shut off, and she is carried

onward by the force of the stream alone. Great nerve, strength

and skill are necessary to pilot the vessel, and several men are

required at the wheel." " One of the most singular sensations

we experienced" says a distinguished traveller, '* was that of sail-

ing many miles perceptibly down hill." This going down hill

by water produces a highly novel sensation, and is, in

fact, a service of some danger, the imminence of which is

enhanced to the imagination, by the tremendous roar of the head-

long, boiling current. The Canadian Navigation Company, how-

ever, have never lost any lives by accident, in descending the

rapids.

CORNWALL,

At the foot of the Long Sault, on the Canada side, a neat little

town of about 5,000 inhabitants, contains some of the largest

cotton and woolen mills in Canada. This is a very pleasant sum-

mer resor« and is much frequented by tourists who find good

sporting and fishing in the neighbourhood. The Hotel accom-

modation is unsurpassed, the Ottawa House affording such as is

not often found outside of the large cities. Everything is neat

and clean about the premises, the attendants are obliging, and

the proprietor Mr. W. H. Dunkin unremitting in his attentions

fn hia cnesis. Fiveryhodv who visits this house once, desires

to do so again. Travellers who intend stopping at Cornwall

should make a note of the "Ottawa House." Cornwall Is-
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The Great International Route between the

AND
The only Through Route to QUEBEC, MONTREAL, TORONTO and

all points in Canada.

Through Express Trains leave BOSTON, PORTLAND and BUFFALO
for

DETROIT AND CHICAGO
Connecting with all the Roads diverging from those Cities.

Pullman Palace and Sleeping Cars on all Through Trains.

BAGGAGE CHECKED THROUGH.
FARES LESS than by any other Route.

Through Tickets, Time Tables, and reliable information may be ob-

tained at all principal Ticket Offices in the United States and Canada.

JOS. HICKSON,
Secretary ^Treasurer

j

Montreal.

WM, WAIJSWniGHT,
General Passenger Agent

. Montreal.

\VILLIAM O'BRIEN, Agent,
TT^ll

MONTREAL.

1 tm^
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LAKE ST. FRANCIS,

land lies in the river opposite the town, and belongs to the
Indians of

ST. REGIS.

This is an old Indian village, a little below Cornwall, on the

south side of the river. The tourist will observe from the deck
of the steamer the old church, litting its tin roof above the neigh-

boring hoa3es. The bell, hanging in this church, is associated

with a deed o( genuine Indian revenge. On its way from France
it wai captured by an English cruiser, and taken into Sulem,
Massachusetts, where it was sold to the church at Deerfield, in

the same State. The Indians, hearing of the destination of their

bell, set out for Deerfield, attacked the town, killed forty-seven

of the inhabitants, and took one hundred and twelve captives,
'' among whom was the pastor and his family." The bell was
then taken down, and conveyed to St. Regis, where it now hangs.

The boundary line between the United States and Canada
passes near this village, and the course of the St. Lawrence is

hereafter within Her Majesty's Dominions.
This is the name of that expansion of the St. Lawrence which

begins just below Cornwall and St. Regis, and extends to Coteau
du Lac. Many little islands are scattered here and there over its

surface. Coteau du Lac is a small village at the foot of the lake;

and, on the north side, over against this place, is Grand Island.

Just below are the Coteau Rapids. The Cedars is a small town
just above the rapids of this name. Passing these rapids—a very

excit.Lsg passage—you glide into Lake St. Louis, from which you
catch a view of Montreal Mountain in the distance.

BEAUHARNOIS.

Is a small village at the foot of the Cascades, on the south bank
oi the river. Here, vessels, when ascending the river, enter the

Beauharnois Canal, and pass around the rapids of the Cascades,

\
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Montreal,

RAIIalKTAir.

SUMMER ARRANGEMENT
Commencing the Mh May, 1874:.

Stations,

MOKTEEAL
S. Lambert

TZE^JLIIsTS.
i^aAl*

8.45
9.08

^ 9.35
Chambly Basin. 10.15
Chambly Canton 10.20
Eichelieu 10.*30

f 9^08 r

I 9.35 I

Stations,

Richelieu

Chambly Canton.
Chambly Easin...

St. Lambert
,

MONTEEAL ...

tj:f rniEtj^TJsr^.

7.35
7.45
7.50
8.20
8.25
8.50

( 8.'2o r

X 8.25 \

P.M.

5.15
5.45
5.50
6.25
6.30
6.40

P.M.

4.35
4.45
4.50
5.25
5.45
6.15

ASHLEY HIBBAED,
Manager.

^««

i ^ .'

L
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Cedars and Coteau into Lake St. Francis, a distance of 14 miles.
On the north side, a branch of the Ottawa enters the St. Law-
rence.

LACHINE.

At the foot of Lake St. Louis, is a village of about 2000 inhabi-
tants. It is a favorite resort during the summer months for
Montrealers. The Lachine rapids begin just below the town.
Opposite is

CAUGHNAWAUGA.

An Indian village, lying near the entrance of the Lachine rapids.
It is said to have derived its name from the Indians who had been
converted by the Jesuits, who were called " Caughnawauga's '' or
** Praying Indians." This is evidently a misnomer, for instead of
praying, they were given to preying^ and were distinguished for
their predatory incursions upon their neighbours in the New
England Provinces, and had a most surprising fondness for scalps.
The bell that now hangs in their church, it is said was the pro-
ceeds of one of their pioMs excursions. The following is a des-
cription of the descent of the Lachine Eapids, taken from an
American newspaper :

At this point (Caughnawauga) a canoe comes off and brings
an^ Indian. He comes on board to pilot the boat over the La-
chine, which is the last but most dangerous of the rapids. As
the boat moves onward to the rapids, all the passengers, even to
the novel readers, are anxious to get a good position7 in order to
have a fine view of the heaving, breaking and laughing water.
As we enter the rapids, we appear to be running upon a small
grass-covered, rocky island. Indeed, the bow of the boat is so
near that it seems impossible to clear it, we look to see if the pilot
is at the helm. Yes, there stands the captain at his post, in
front of the wheel-house; and the Indian pilot with three other
strong mer, are at the wheel; and as we look at the calm coun-
tenance of the Indian and see that his brighteye does not so
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Pullman Day and Sleeping Cars
THROUGH W^ITHOUT CHANGE.

Ti-ains leave Montreal from Bonaventure St. Station,

9.15 A. M. DAT EXPRESS,
With Pullman Parlor Car, Arriving in Boston 10.20 p.m. same night

3.45 P. M. NIGHT EXPRESS
With Pullman Palace Sleeping Car, arriving at Springfield, 6.30

a.m.; Concord, 5.20 a.m.; Manchester, G.OO a.m.; Lowell, 7.00 a.m.;
Lawrence, 7.30 a.m.; Worcester, 9.25 a.m.; BOSTON, 8.35 A.M.

For Tickets and full information, please call at

136* ST. JAMES STREET, MONTREAL
F. PICARD, Ticket Agent.

L. MILLS, Gen. Supt. Traffic,
J Qm at -d axtcj Trm

S. W. CUMMINaS, Pass. Agt. }
^^' ALBANS, VT.

< .m. '
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much as wink, but is steadily fixed upon his beacon, whatever it

may be, and that the wheelsmen are fully under his control, we
feel that with his skill, care, and knowledge of the way, we may
banish fear from our thoughts. He guides the boat among the
islands and the rocks, over the rapids and through the intricate

channels as easily as a skillful horseman reins a high-spirited char-
ger. As quick as thought t)ie boat glides away from those rocks
which it appeared impossible to avoid ; but the pilot apparently
is sensible to fear, though not to the responsibility that rests upon
him. He is aware, and all are aware, that one false move and all

is lost ; for the current is so swift^ the seas runs so high, and the
boat is driven so rapidly, that one touch upon a rock would shiver

her to atoms. Although the passage of the rapids appears to be
so dangerous, a sense of pleasure and excitement takes the place
of fear." In about half an hour after leaving this last rapid the
boat passes under Victoria Bridge, the longest and largest bridge
in the world, after which the traveller comes in full view of the
City of Montreal.

MONTKEAL,

the commercial and financial metropolis of the Dominion, is also

the most populous of Canadian cities. It is situated at the head
of navigation for ocean vessels, 540 miles from the Gulf of St.

Lawrence, on the Island of Montreal, which lies between the

broad St. Lawrence and the rapid Ottawa—the two great rivers

of the N'orth. The island extends some thirty-two miles in

length, and ten in width, and is considered the garden of the

province. The surface of the island is level, 'with the exception

of the eminence of Mount Eoyal, which rises 550 feet above the

river level, The settlement of the town was first determined on
by the first explorer, Jacques Cartier, in 1535, at which time an
Indian village was located here, called Hochelaga. The perman-
ent fouudiDg of the city, however, did not take place till i6-±2,

and in one hundred years of growth, thereafter, it gathered a

population of only 4,000. It was under French rule till 1760,
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THE UNDERSIGNED HAVING OPENED A

FIRST-CLASS BOOT & SHOE STORE
—IN—

No. 375 Notre Dame Street,
Wotdd respectfully inform the Ladies of Montreal, that they will find a

First-class Assortment
-0F~

LADIES*. MISSES' AND CHILDREN'S

ffte® Mm
OF THE

lATBSr DESIGNS AND OP THE FINEST MATERIil IN THE MARKET.

vO^

Having made special arrangements with the best Wholesale
Houses in New York and Boston, as well as in Montreal, we are in a
position to offer a superior article at terms more reasonable than have
heretofore been presented to the public

vO^

The Proprietors (late with Burt's Fine Shoe House in New York
and Brooklyn) are well up in the wants of the Fine Shoe Business,
and respectfully solicit a call.

E. & A. PERU?.

376 NOTRE DAME STREET.
Late of Burt's, Brooklyn.

•r

I
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when it passed into the hands of the English. In 1832, the
cholera raged in Montreal with great violence, carrying off 1,843
inhabitants in a population of little more than 30,000. In April,

1849, a political mob burnt the Parliament buildings, and the
seat of Government was, in consequence, transferred to Quebec,
subsequently to Toronto, and finally to Ottawa. In July 1852, a
destructive fire laid waste a large portion of the city, burning 110
houses, and destroying property valued at $1,363,264. Not-
withstanding these reverses, the city rapidly recovered, and to-

day numbers a population of nearly 170,000 people. Years of
industry, intelligence, enterprise and labor, have produced a
mighty contrast. At the beginning of the present century ves-
sels of more than 300 tons could not ascend to Montreal, and its

foreign trade was carried on by small brigs and barges. Now,
ocean vessels of 4,000 tons, the magnificent floating palaces of
the Eichelieu Company, and ships of from 700 to 2,000 tons,

from all parts of the world, lay alongside the wharves of the har-

bor, which are not equalled on this continent in point of extent,

accommodation, approach and cleanliness. Montreal has now
over 200 miles of streets and lanes, some of the streets are nar-

row, but the majority will compare favorably with any on the
continent. Nowhere can finer or more solid public buildings be
found. The buildings for commercial and other purposes would
dignify any city. There are none in the United States which
present finer specimens of street architecture than are found

—

not isolated here and there, but in long blocks and throughout
the whole city.

PLACES OF INTEEEST.

The Court House, on Notre Dame Street, is after the Grecian
style of architecture, and is, in its unpretending and massive
grandeur, second to few buildings in the city.

is equal, if not superior, to any building of the kind in

America.
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Canadian Navigation Company

Royal Mail Line
BETWEEN

mmm, immi tcroito, hamiitoii
AND mTERMEDIATE PORTS.

This Line composed of the following first-class Side Wheel
Steamers, viz

:

(Composite) - - - Capt. Sinclair

Dunlop

CORSICA^- .

SPAKTAI^ -

CORINTHIAN
PASSPORT
BAVARIAN (New)
MAGNET -

4(

(t

«

It

It
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Will Leave the Canal Basin,
Gananoque, - -

Kingston, - -

Cobourg - . -

Port Hope

Farrell

Simpson
Carmichael

McCoy

DaHiDgton
Toronto

Montreal, every raornmg,
(Sundays excepted) at 9.00 a.m.
Lachine - - - - at 12 30 p.m.
Yalleyfield - - -at 6.30 "
Cornwall - ... at 9.30 "
Dickinson's Landing at 2.00 a.m.
Prescott - - - - at 9.20
Brockville - - - at 10.30

MAKING DIRECT CONNECTIONS
AND PRESCOTT AND BROCKVILLE,
"With the Railways for Ottawa, Kemptville Perth, Arnprior; &c.

It

- at 12.45 p.m.
at 5.30 *'

- at 1.30 a.m.
at 2.10 *'

-at 3.30

at 8.00
Arriving at Hamilton at 10.45

n
It

1
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AT TORONTO AND HAMILTON,
WITH THE RAILWAYS FOR

Collingwood, Lake Superior, Stratford, London, Chatham, Sarnia,
Detroit, Chicago, Milwaukee, Galena, Green Bay,

Stt Paul, St. Louis, and with the

OITY OF TORONTO
For Niagara, Lewiston Niagara Falls, Buffalo, Cleveland

Toledo and Cincinnati.

cc 99

x)o"w^isr"W"^:e.iDS.
Leave Hamilton every Morning
(Sunday excepted) at 9.00 a.m.
Leave Toronto - - at 2.00 p.m.

" Darlington - at 5.20 "
" Port Hope - at 6.50 "

Cobourg, - -at 7.20 "K

Leave Kingston, -

'* Gananoque,
*' Brockville,

" Prescott,
*' Cornwall,

at 5.30 a.m.
at 7.00 "

at 9.30 "

at 10.30 "

at 1.20 p.m.
Arriving in Montreal, at 6.45 «

t

Passing through the beautiful and Romantic Scenery of the

lake of the Thousands Islands, and all the Eapids of the River St. Lawrence

BY DAYLIGHT.
CONNECTIJ^G AT MONTREAL, WITH THE STEAMER FOR

QUEBEC, TAURRAY BAY, RIVIERE DU LOUP, CACOUNA,
TADOUSAC, AND THE

Far-Faxned River Saguenay
U^^B» The Steamers of this Line are replete with every Comfort and
ij^gr convenience and every Appliance for safety ; and from the com-
pleteness of the Arrangements present advantages to travellers supe-

rior to every other conveyance.

THROUGH TICKETS AT LOW RATES.
To all the above places with every information, may be obtained from

the various Local Agents, on board the Steamers, and at

177 ST. JAMES STREET.

Company's Office, 177 St. James St.
\

Montreal, April, 1874. J

M -w TT-^ -yr- •mm—ww -w j^^ -mr-r-

JLJLJliX. IfHAjJbUXj
Secretary k Treasurer.
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The Custom House, Commissioners Street, is a splendid
building of imposing proportions.

The New Post Office, Great St. James Street, now in course
of erection, is in the modern Italian style, the fa§ade highly
ornamented with cut stone pillars, pediments, and carved
portico.

The Mechanics' Institute, a fine building of cut stone, is in the
Italian style.

Merchants' Exchange, on St. Sacrament Street.

Young Mens' Christian Association Building, corner of Craig
and Eadegonde Streets, one of the finest buildings in the city,
in the Mediaeval or Decorated Gothic style.

Montreal Telegraph Co.'s Offices, St. Francois Xavier Street,
is of Ohio freestone, built in the modern Italian style of archi-
tecture.

Christ Church Cathedral, unquestionably the finest specimen
of ecclesiastical architecture in America, is situated on St.
Catherine Street.

St, George's Church, St. Janivier Street, a beautiful edifice,
built of Montreal stone.

Cathedral of Notre Dame, reputed to be the largest church
edifice in North America, holding within its walls 10,000 people.
The building is 260 feet long by 140 feet broad, and the two
massive towers, flanking the front upon the square, rise 220 feet.

There is a famous peal of bells in the left tower, one of which
is the "Gros Bourdon," weighing fifteen tons, and having a
deep bass intonation. The prospect from the right tower, which
can be ascended by payment of a slight fee, is wonderfully wide,
looking out upon the broad waters, the islands and shipping of
the St. Lawrence, the rapids of Lachine, the distant Vermont
hills, and the suburban villages. The seminary of St. Sulpice
adjoins the Cathedral, and is surrounded by spacious gardens
and court-yards. In near vicinity, around this fine square, are

i

J
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the noble buildings of the important Banking and Insurance

Companies of the Dominion.

Church of the GesUf situated on Bleury Street, is most beauti-

fully frescoed, and contains some very fine paintings. The style

of architecture is the Bound Eoman Arch.

Bonsecours Church is on St. Paul Street, and is the oldest

church in the city. Mass was first performed in it on the

15th August, 1675.

MercTmnts Bank—This magnificent building, the finest edifice

for commercial purposes on the continent, is situated at the corner

of St. James and St. Peter streets.

Molson's Bank, also on St. James street, is a very handsome

structure, built of Ohio sandstone.

The Bank ofMontj'eal, Place d'Armes, is built in the Corinthian

style of architecture.

> The Bank of British North America, Great St. James street,

is a handsome building of cut stone, and built in the composite

style of architecture.

General Hospital—Dorchester street.

Hotel Dim Hospital—St. Famile street, founded in 1744 by

Madame de Bouilon.

Grey Nunnery—St. Catherine street west, founded in

1755.

McGill (7o%e—Sherbrooke street. The most important edu-

cational institution in the Province of Quebec.

NELSON'S MONUMENT.

At the head of Jacques Cartier Square, is a column of grey lime-

stone, crowned with the figure of the hero of Trafalgar. Erected

in 1808.
CHAMP DE MA.RS

Is the old parade ground for the garrison regiments and volunteer

soldiery. Three thousand troops may be rcvieweu upon it, an^*

it is a favourite promenade.

3
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VIGER GARDENS,

Near the Champ de Mars, is beautifully laid out, with conserva-

tory, fountains, &c,

VICTORIA SQUARE,

At the head of McGill street, is neatly laid out, with a large

fountain in the centre. At the south end of this square is placed

a beautiful bronze

STATUE OF HER MAJESTY QUEEN VICTORIA,

A work of art from the studio of Mr. Marshal Wood.

THE VICTORIA BRIDGE.

The Victoria Bridge (built under the superintendence of the

celebrated Robert Stevenson) the longest and largest bridge in the

world, is that known as the tubular or beam bridge, and consists

of a series of iron tubes resting on 24 stone piers, with a distance

between each pier of 242 feet, except the centre opening, which
is 330 feet in length, its total length between the abutments is

6,600 feet, or a mile and a quarter. The bridge is approached
by massive embankments, the one on the Montreal side being

1,200 feet, and that of the South shore 800 feet in length, which
together, including the abutments, make the total length of the

bridge 9084 feet, or nearly a mile and three-quarters.

The cost of this gigantic structure was $6,300,000. In its

erection 250,000 tons of stone, aud 8,000 tons of iron have been
used.

DRIVES.

The Canadian carriage is kept with scrupulous neatness, and
the drivers are your willing and obliging servants, knowing every
inch of the routes by which they convey you ; and the charges,

UDiijiC tiie ^i.merican coaching fares, uo not spoil the fairest pros-

pects by threatening total ruin to your finances.
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SOUTH EASTERN RAILWAY,
Montreal and Boston Air I<lne»

Comprising the South Eastern Railway, Passumpsic Railway, Boston, Gonoord, and
Moutreal Railway.

TWO PAST EXPRESS TRAINS
Composed of New and Most Elegant Cars with All Modem ImproTCments will nm

from Moutreal Bonaventure Station, to

BOSTON LOWELL DEPOT.
Making Connections for all other New EnglaxMl Cities.

THE ADVANTAGES OF THIS LINE ARE UNRIVALLED.

WHOLE TRAINS RUis THROITGH

From Montreal to Boston.

Our Trains stop Thirty Minutes for Meals at the Memphramagog House, Newport,
Vermont, and at the Pemigewasset House, Plymouth, New Hampsliire, whose repu-
tations speak for themselves.

.iVy;DAT EXPRESS
LEAVES MONTREAL, 8.45 A.M., ARRIVES AT BOSTON, 10 P.M.—This Train stops for Dinner at Memphramagog, Pemigewasset
House, Plymouth, N.H.

NIGHT EXPRESS
LEAVES MONTREAL, 3.15 P.M., ARRIVES AT BOSTON 8.40 A.M.

For Tickets and information apply to the GENERAL OFFICE,
202 ST. JAME6 STREET.

G. LEVJE, Passenger Agt. A, B. FOSTEM, Manager.
JET, A, ALDENf Superintendent.

Office :—202 St. James Street, Montreal.

^PW
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AROUND THE MOUNTAIN.

The drive ar(!vmiid the mountain is certainly one which it would
be difficult, for natural beauty, to surpass. On a clear, bright

day, the view from any point of the drive is magnificent ; several

hundred feet below is spread out a gorgeous panorama of ever

varying beauty, affording commanding and attractive views of the

Canadian metrqpolis and the great river of the North. Well
stocked and highly cultivated farms attest the prosperity of the

husbandman.; comfortable homesteads, nestling mid a luxurious

growth, dot the landscape ; here and there broad belts of forest

shade the view and form a fringework to the picture ; looming

mja, faintly shadowed in the distance, the far off hills of Vermont
raise their summit," while, like a silver thread winding through

the valley, the majestic St. Lawrence flows onward to the sea,

spanned at this point by the Victoria Bridge—one of the greatest

modern specimens of engineering skill. Handsome private

dwelHngs, faced with gardens, laid out with great taste, line the

roadway, and add to the beauty of the scene.

TO LACHINB.

The drive to Laehine (nine miles) is one of great interest.

Lacfalne is the Bumnier residence of many Montrealers, and has

become famotis% its annual regattas. It is noted as beitig the

scene of a terrible massacre of the whites by the Iroquois Indians,

in the year 1689, when over 200 persons were burned alive.

Caughnawauga, an Indian village, is situated immediately op-

posite, and is eonneeted by a steam ferry.

The Laehine Road leads along the banks of the St. Lawrence,

and commands views of scenery of unsurpassed beauty and

grandeum

TO LONaUE POINT.

Another favorite drive is in an opposite direction to the last,

to Longue Pointe, passing through the village of Hochelaga.
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iioN Navigation Compan!
BETWEEN

MONTREAL AND QUEBEC.

The Magnificent Steamers

"ABYSSINIAN,"
Capt. NORMAND PAULET,

"ATHENIAN,"
Capf. E. C. WURTELE,

Leave BONSECOURS PIER (first Pier to the left, foot of Jacques
Cartier Square) DAILY (Sundays excepted) for

Calling at

SOEEL, THREE, RIVERS AND BATISCAN.
This is the great foshionable thoroughfare for American Tourists.

Pare Cheaper tnan any other first class Company
2l^=^TICKETS for sale by Agents at all the Hotels and at Fisher's

Stamp Office, St. Francois Xavier Street, opposite the Post Office,
where State Booms can be secured.

BETURN TICKETS AT REDUCED RATES.
For Freight or Passage, apply on the Wharf, Bonsecours Pier, and at

the Office. No= 24 Jacques Gartier Snuaro,

H. J. STEVENSON,
Passbngbr Aoent,

0. H. LEFAIVEE,
Sicbbtabt-Tbias.

^»
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The river scenery in this direction is very fine, and of quite a
different character from that west of the city. The villages of
Longueuil, Boucherville, and Varennes may be seen on the op-
posite side of the river.

MOUNT KOYAL CEMETRY

Is situated on the east side of the mountain, about two miles
from the city. The approach to it is by a winding carriage
way, passing through which may be seen many of the wild beau-
ties of nature, and from several points on the road there are
beautiful views to be had in every direction. The road, which
is kept in the finest condition, is planted on each side with trees.
The gateway at the entrance is a beautiful structure of cut stone,
with iron gates.

It would be useless to undertake an enumeration of all the
places of interest in and about Montreal, for we believe that
there are but few places on the American Continent where can
be found so much of interest to the traveller, whether in pursuit
of health or pleasure, as in this city.

RAILROAD AND STEAMBOAT OFFICES.

Grand Trunk Railway Offices^ for Quebec, Portland, Toronto , &c.
at Bonaventure Station, Depot—Bonaventure Street,

ITjyper Canada Line of Steamers—177 Great St. James street.

Ottawa River Steamboat Office— 'No. 13, Bonaventure street.

Passengers go via Lachine Railroad, Bonaventure Depot.

Quebec Steamboat Office—2-i: Jacques Cartier Square.

CAB FARES.

Fare per Hour—Coaches, or four-wheeled cabs, or correspond-
ing winter vehicles, drawn by two horses, for the first hour $1,
For each subsequent hour 75 cents, and pro rata for intermedi-
ate quarters of an hour.

Cabs, two or four-wheeled, or corresponding winter vehicles,
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II UMMU HiLL.

OTTAWA, ONTARIO.

THE LARGEST HOTEL IN THE CITY,

Unrivalled for Style and Locality.

Every Convenience, Comfort,
and Elegance.

WILL ACCOMMODATE 300 GUESTS.

mmm to and Faou tbe boa's Ai\D tbalv^.

CHARGES MODERATE.
'i ,

"

J. B. McKENZlE,

OtUwii, Jun* M74. T'E.OI'iaiE'XOia-

r'*^%
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drawQ bj ooe horse, for one or two persons, for the first hour 50
cents, asd for each subsequent hour 40 cents. For three or four
persons, for the first hour 75 cents; each subsequent hour 50
cents, and pro rata for mtermediate quarters of an hour.

Usual charges for two horse carriages to go round the moun-
tain, a distance of nine miles, $4, for one or four persons.

For cab, $1.50 for two or three persons j for four persons $2.

TO QUEBEC.

From Montreal to Quebec, passage is made on one of the ele-
gant steamers of the Union Navigation Company, called the
"Abyssinian" and "Athenian." Leaving Montreal in the
evening, passmg the fort on the island in the harbor, leaving
LongueuU to the right, and passing the group of islands below
the city, and the mouth of the Ottawa river, you are fairly
on your way to the old capital.

SOREL,

Forty-five miles below Montreal, is the first port at which a halt
is made by the steamer. Sorel is built on the site of a fort built
in 1655 by M. DeTracy, and was for many years the summer
residence of successive governors of Canada. It is situated at
the confluence of the rivers Richelieu and St. Lawrence, popula-
tion about 8,000. Five miles below Sorel the river expands
into a^ wide lake nearly twenty-five miles in length, and nine
miles in width, known a« .

LAKE ST. PETER.

The river St. Francis here enters the lake from the south.
During the descent to Quebec, a great amount of shipping of
every class will be passed, and immense timber rafts will be ob-
served, floating down to the great timber mart at Quebec, some-
times in single rafts, and sometimes in many, combined into a
floatifig timber town, populous with hardy lumbermen, whose
songs enliven the monotony of their voyage.
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V THREE RIVERS. '

^
T G FARMER; Proprietor.

This Hotel is charmingly situated on theW

ask of t]^e Sic Lawa^eacic
The Balconies overlook the Eiver and afford a

splendid View^ of

TIIjTI ^

The accommodation is unsurpassed, the House
being kept in first class City style,—Shawenagan
Falls and St. Leon Mineral Springs are only 24 miles

distant.

Carriages and Boats for the use of Guests.

T. G. FARMER, Proprietor.
Three Riyers, July 1, 1874.

.1.
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THREE RIVERS,

Situated midway between Montreal and Quebec, is one of the
oldest settlements in Canada, and has Convents and Church
edifices of considerable architectural pretensions. The town was
first settled in 1618. Population about 9(>00.

Tourists would do well to spend a day or two at this place,

there are beautiful drives in the vicinity and good boating and
fishing. There is also excellent Hotel accommodation—Farmer's
Hotel being noted far and wide as a favorite resort for the tra-

veller, First class fare^—elegantly furnished rooms and clean

beds are what is required to make a Hotel what it should be,

and these are all to be found here. Mr. Farmer thoroughly un-
derstood the art of making his guests comfortable, and does it.

The famous falls of Shawanagan, second only to those of Niagara
are but twenty four utiles from Three Elvers, and those of th*

Grand' Mere 13 miles further up the St. Maurice. The cele-

brated St. Leon Mineral Springs are also 24 miles from here.

The Chaudiere Kiver enters the St. Lawrence about six miles

above the City of Quebec. At this point the precipitous banks
of the St. Lawrence increase in height, and the eager stranger

catches a distant view of the towers and battlements of the grand
old northern City.

Before reaching the town, " Wolfe's Cove " will be pointed out,

to the left, that memorable spot where the brave commander
landed his forces under cover of darkness, and scaling the pre-

cipice, fought the battle which changed the destiny of the

western empire. The round martello towers, in advance of the

defences of the city, on the plains of Abraham, first attract

attention, and you sweep in full view of the defiant battlements

and towers which crown the natural walls of old Quebec—the seat

of ancient dominion—where jealous nations contended for supre-

macy, and shook its rocky throne with the roar and clash of con-

tending armies.
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SHERBROOKE, P. Q.

^^^

The Magog House has been thoroughly
renovated and enlarged in

FIRST-CLASS STYXE
It is situated in a very pleasant part of the town, com-
manding a view of two rivers. It is only a few steps

to the Post Office, Telegraph Office and Banki.

j^ lh^e OIF sT^a-Es
LEAVES EVERY DAY FOR

LAKE MEIVIPH REM AGOG,
To connect with the Steamer "Lady of the Lake," for Newport.

H ^ UrPDIIDM

Proprietor.

U
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SHEKBROOKE.

Situated just 100 miles from Montreal, on the line nf ih. n ^Trunk EaHroad and in the beautiful and romanUc valWoW

QUEBEC

CIIAJDEL

Eh£'!^!?f r^'*?' P"°* °^ S^^«*^«' '°t«^e«t to •nany, fromthe historical associat.oDs connected therewith, andfrom theW

/"
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IIUSSELL HOUSE
CORNER ANN & GARDEN STREETS,

^ •

ti r

If I

This modem built Hotel is open as an auxiliary to the

St. Louis Hotel.

TERMS MODERATE.
WILLIS RUSSELL,

June 1874.
PROPRIETOR,

W

a
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"Plains of Abraham." The p^eluou hlnff™'"-
''"

'f'"*''
perpendicularly from tho rilp^.

P:f'"P'Y"' .'>'»*, rising almost

preset a natayrriei%"^e^' ma^be'TS wTtS
'"'% """''

fire, and the covered wav« nf „^„r T T ^ ^"" murderous
kinds and calibrlof IT Irt? 1 "".** '''""''*' *•"« ^"io»«
.war, will be vie^d wUreaJeT u^irlr^'trf°"^

•'^.

interest may be mentioned •
'°'*'^'- Among the places of

theXrX:;^;ft,^SL^'^^^^^^^—nt, .arting

jJntlm"""""
^''''"'' ''* '^^ --"""ent to Wolfe aud

The spot where fell the American General Montgomery.

S: ^p- rpXlheSS-^^^^'
^'*'' ''' -"^ «-<"<« P^'-«ngs.

woS'
^"''''"''''' '"'"" '^"-'"'^ '«»-« of the finest yi;ws in the

Houses of Parliament.

^' Russell House " kpnf m.f^r a

~
.
-Louis Hotel and the

course, from thel s^ th^ tsUU^Z £7''%^'^'''' '''''' "^

and the rush of visitors at th7,ll^ri 5 ^® traveller's attention

;

sufficiently testi^rth corforfatd cTiiftv'' vT^''
"^""^^
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St.LOUISHOTEL

The 8T* LOUIS HOTEL^ which is unrivalled for
Size, Style and Locality, in Quebec, is open only
during the Season of Pleasure Travel.

It is eligibly situated, near to and surrounded by
the most delightful and fashionable promenades,

THE GOYEENOE'S GAEDEN,
THE CITADEL,

THE ESPLANADE,
THE PLACE D'AEMES

DUEHAM TEEEACE,
which furnish the splendid views and magnificent
scenery for which Quebec is so justly celebrated,
and wnich is unsurpassed in any part of the world.
The Proprietor in returning thanks for the very

liberal patronage he has hitherto enjoyed, informs
the public that this Hotel has been thoroughly re-

novated and embellished, and can now accommo-
date about 500 Visitors ; and assures them that
nothing will be wanting on his part that will con-
duce to the comfort and enjoyment of his Guests.

WILLIS EUSSELL,
Jime, 1874. Proprietor.

I

i^l
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the far-famed Sagueaay Murray Bay, Kamouraska, Caoouna.
Kimouski, Gaspe, and other uoted watering places.

»„ ^"t''r«°t" ""'"'f
* »''"°<J'»"% to the tastes of those who liko

to yacht, fish or shoot Yachting, in fact, has become of latequite an institution. You can on those mellow Saturday after-
noons m August and September, meet the whole sportinR and
fashionable world of the Upper Town on the Durham Terrace orJjower Town wharves, bent on witnessing a trial of speed or sea-
manship between the MouMe, the Black Hawk, the Wasp, theShannon the B<m Homme Richaid, and half a score of crack
yachts and their owners.

J^t^^MV^r^ ""' «"y """t^^^ -^'^^^ the vest wing, builtabout 1789 by Governor Haldimand, to enlarge the old Chateau

,h°/ M ^ '^^T-'h ^?^* = ""^ mouldering pile, now used asthe Normal School, is all that remains of the stately edifice of old
overhanging and faci.g the Cul-de-Sao. where thi lordly Countde trontenac held his quasi regal court in 1691 ; next, the Laval
University founded in 1854, conferring degrees under its royal
charier; the course of studies is similar to that of the celebrated^uropean University of Louvain; then there is the Quebec
beminary, erected by Bishop Laval, a Montmorency, in 1663

;

the Ursulme Convent, founded in 1636 by Madame de laPeltrie'
this nunnery, with the E. C. Cathedral, which was built in 1646*
contains many valuable paintings, which left France about 1789

'

the General HospitaVfounded two centuries ago by Monseigneur

1/ i.L
'"'^"'•^^^^.' " "^ the chief hospital for the woundedand the dying during the memorable battle of the 13th September—Arnold and his continentals found protection against the rigors

of a Canadian winter behind its walls in 1775-6 : the HotehDieu
nunnery, close to Palace Gate, dating more than t;o hundred years

As to the views to be obtained from Durham Terrace, therti • 1 ii \r;. , ;
"^'vwiucv* nuuj x/urnam xerrace, the

?."!?!!!"'' ^.?.'"'<'?'' *ty."«""q»e » g^audeur, each s'tr^t"-= .» unu iammar vista oi tlie surrounding country It is verily,
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as Henrv Ward Beecher well expresses it, " like turning over the

leaves of a picture-book."

The Montmorency Falls, a magnificent sight at almost all sea-

sons of the year, are situated about nine miles from the city.

Between them and Quebec is the Beauport Lunatic Asylum, the

largest and finest building of the kind in the Province. Many
tourists and excursionists, after viewing the old northern capital,

and its romantic and beautiful surroundings, will pursue the

journey still further down the great St. Lawrence to that won-

derful river the Sagjuenay, which enters the St. Lawrence

one hundred and twenty miles below Quebec. On the way down

the river, the mouth of the Eiver St. Anne will be passed, off the

lower extremity of the Island of Orleans. This river enters the

larger stream- through a bold ravine, and many ascend the stream

for a short distance to the Falls of St. Anne, which, with the

surroundings, are pleasing and attractive.

Thirty-six miles below Quebec is a group of six small islands,

alive with geese, ducks and teal, who make this a breeding place.

The quarantine station at *< Grosse Isle " deserves a passing

notice—a lovely spot of itself, quietly sleeping in the great river,

but a very charnel house in the past, receiving, in the time of the

famine in Ireland, six thousand emigrants in one huge grave.

The river widens broader and broader below this point to ten

and twenty miles as you sail on, as upon a shoreless sea, losing

sight of either shore.

MURRAY BAY,

On the North Shore, ninety miles below Quebec, is a fashionable

watering place, and the fine fishing in Murray River i» much

patronized. The river here is about twenty miles wide, and

steaming across to " Riviere du Loup," on the South Shore, pas-

sengers are landed within six miles of

OACOUNA5

One of the most fashionable watering places in America, and

^*



61

where tourists will find facilities for enjoyment, cither of luxuri-

ous ease or active sporting. Continuing down the St. Lawrence,

on th« northern shore,

TADOUSAO

is reached, at the mouth of the Saguenay. Here is famed facil-

ities for bathing, for seal bunting, and for fishing in the tribu-

taries of the Saguenay. The first permanent stone building

ere«ted on this continent was erected here.

THE SAGUENAY

is the largest ajffluent of the St. Lawrence, having its source in

Lake St. John, and a straight course of one hundred and thirty

miles from the lake to the St. Lawrence. The upper half ot its

course is a series of falls and rapids, navigable only by canoes,

and flowing through a dense and almost unknown wilderness.

The navigable portion of the river will float the largest vessels of

the world, from its mouth some sixty miles to the head of naviga-

tion, and ha« been described as a perfectly straight, yawning gulf,

torn for the whole distance in the grey mica schist, rising on

either hand in precipitous cliffs, whose bases rest in unknown
depths—a panorama of rocky walls and precipices—a region

dark, desolate, cheerless and cold.

The ascent terminates in Ha-Ha Bat, a quiet and lovely bay,

receding from the river several miles, a cheerful village, animal life,

and facilities for amusement are found here, a change most wel-

come from the sombre desolation of the ascent. Lake St. John,

in which the river has its source, receives the waters of eleven

large rivers, and an innumerable number of smaller streams

from the vast water-shed surrounding it, but discharges all its

waters throu<jh this one wonderful stream.

STATUE POINT

Is a noted gem of scenery on the river, a perpendicular rock below
^ TT« t> .i. i.1.^ i.^~. k A« ^w« n <-M«« /\rfc * *\lrt4'/

feet wide, and six hundred feet in height, with sides as smooth as

jj
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though polished hy a skillful workman. Six miles above the Bay
of St. Johns are the great points of attraction on the river,

CAPE ETERNITY AND TRINITY ROCK,

CoUossal promontories of sheer descent, at whose very base the

largest ships may ride in the immense depth of waters ; sights

never to be forgotten—bold, barren, forbidding and awful. The
discharge of a cannon on shipboard between these bare walls of

rock, is said to crash back in echoes which no one could wish to

have repeated, one such sensation sufficing for a lifetime.

E

i «^
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MONTEBAL TO OTTAWA.

The best route from Montreal to Ottawa, the Capitol of the

Dominion, is to take the train to Lachice, which leaves the

Bonayenture Street Depot every morning (Sundays excepted) at

seven o'clock, and there stepping on board the steamer Prince op
Wales, (Captain H. W. Shepherd) or steamer Princess,

(Captain McGrowan) sail up the river. By this last route we
have a better opportunity of seeing the beautiful scenery of the

St. Lawrence and Ottawa rivers, as they first meet. It is a bright

nAorning and the sun glances slantingly along the majestic waters,

tinging with golden light the tips of the wavelets as they rise, one

after the other, to greet his rays. A faint mist like a delicate

veil, spreads over the bosom of the river, on which one or two
islets repose, as childhood sleeps on its mother's bosom, yet it does

not conceal the enchanting beauty of the scene, but adds grace and
loveliness to the charms, which it vainly strives to hide. ^It is

soon dissolved, and the light breeze which has sprung up, carries

it all away.
Away we go, stemming the current, until in due time, we reach

Ste. Anne'i, where are a succession of rapids which we avoid by
going through a lock. More islets are here, round which the
Ottawa bubbles and struggles in iUi course, while the pretty village

of Ste. Anne's reposes in quiet beauty upon the bank. This
village is considered the starting point for the Ottawa River, by
all orthodox voyageurs, as the last church on the island of Montreal
is situated here, and is, moreover, dedicated to their tutelary saint,

from whoin also the village takes its name. Emerging from the

canal, again we enter the Ottawa, having left the St. Lawrence
far astern, and after sailing about two miles, we find the shores

recede on either hand, to about eight miles wide, and this recession

continues for a distance of ten miles, for we are in the Lake of
the Two Mountains, so called from two mountains on the north

side rising four to five hundred feet from the water. The river

f
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RO!AL MAIL LINE OF STEAMERS.

MONTREAL TO OTTAWA,

New Iron Steamer PEERLESS
Steamer PRINCE OF WALES

" QUEEN VICTORIA
•« PRINCESS - - -

i

....... Captain A, Bowie
- - - - Captain H. W. Shepherd

- - - - Captain P. Y. Macdonnell
Captain P. McGowan

UPWARD.
^n?^ft^vv.^k* o^ ^^ *^® l^^' and 5 p.m. Trains for Lachine by Railway, and

inrrmldiktelanl'nX'" ^"^ "^ *^^'*" ^^^ "Princess" for Ottawa' and

DOWNWARDS.
c?*fl^T!i®A^

leave Ottawa at 7 a.in. by Steamer "Peerless and atfl p.m. bySteamer Queen Victoria," for Montreal and intermediate landings.
*^ ^ "'

MEALS AND STATEROOMS EXTRA.
Passengers leaving Ottawa by the Evening Steamers Trill descend the Rapids.No throug' Passengers taken on Saturday Evening Boat
ihe comfort and economy ofthis Line are nnsurpa-sed, whilst the route isone of the most picturesque m Canada. Tourists will find this a delightful trip.

Preiglit for all points on the Ottawa sent througli with despatch daily-

Freight Office--87 Commvn Street, Canal.
Single and return Tickets may bo had at the Company's Office, 13

Bonarenture Street; at the Grand Trunk Depot, Montreal, and at
the Office, Queen's Wharf, Ottawa.

R, W.. SHEPHERD. Prssident,

\

r

> '^i
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divides here into four branches, that which we have just come up
another which diverges towards the north-east, and forms the
western boundary of the island of Montreal, the third called the
Dutchman's Chenal, and the fourth passing Yaudreuil around
the Isle Perrot. There is the Isle Jesus, and beside it Pi^reon's
Island, on which are the ruins of an Indian village, also Isle aux
Prune, lately purchased by Dr. Girdwood, of Montreal. For the
purpose of guarding against the incursions of the Indians, the
French built a fort on the Island of Montreal, opposite to the vil-
lage, but both village and fort have now fallen into decay, and
large trees are growing inside the ruined walls of the latter. This
property has been recently bought by the Hon. J. J. C. Abbott,
M.P.P., upon which he has built a beautiful villa where he passes
the summer months. A few miles further on we arrive at a fine
new wharf named Oka, situated in the Indian Village of the Two
Mountains. This village is inhabited by the remnants of two
tribes, the Iroquois and the Algonquins, as the village of Cau<^h-
nawaga, opposite toLachine, is by a remnant of the Iroquois. °A
Eoman Catholic Church divides the settlements, as the people are
all baptised into that Church. Three or four chapels stand on the
mountain side. The highest peak of the mountain is called
Calvary, and on certain religious fetes of the Church it is frequented
by both white and Indian. ]^ow we stop at the village of Como
and Hudson. Both these villages are the resort of some of our
Montreal friends who pass the summer months there with their
families. At the head of the Lake of the Two Mountains the
banks contract, so that the river is not more Aan half a mile in
width, and it continues thus narrow, for about a mile, when there
is again an expansion, for the length of nine miles, forming the
Upper Lake of the Two Mountains. On the southern bank is the
mountain Eigaud, where there is also a settlement of the same
name. The river again contracts to the breadth of half a mile,
and continues, sometimes broader, sometimes as narrow, until we
reach Carrillon.

^
Great^ improvements have been made at this

by building new wharves andv^ompuny
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Btation houses, and here again the navigation is impeded by rapids.A railroad has been formed between the two stretches of navigable
water, and by it we arrive at Grenville, whence we proceed by the
Steamer Peerless (Capt. Bowie) or Queen Victoria (Captain
Macdonell), to Ottawa, which we reach about six o'clock p.m.
Yonder is a raft of wood coming floating down, manned by

hardy voyageurs, who have built their wooden hut upon the timber
island they have made. Far, far back, in the thick and dark
woods, have they toiled through the inclemency of winter, gather-
ing together the huge monarchs of the forest ; far, far back, where
the bears prowl, and the gaunt and hungr^ wolves " make nisht
hideous " with their bowlings ; while the hardened snow has
covered the ground many feet deep, and the frost spirit has

"Bound the waters in icy chains
Bj a apell unseen yet strong;,"

and the cold is keen, cutting, and piercing, such a cold as can only
be felt when the thermometer ranges 30° or 403 below zero ; in
this wild scene, in this severe season they have toiled, felling' the
huge trees and fitting them for the market. And now, one by
one, they have launched the logs, and fastening them strongly
together, have committed them to the river to bear them down
They have sent them rushing crib after crib down the slides, which
have borne them along and plunged them again safely into the
dark deep water. Refastened, and their hut rebuilt and their
low masts with broad square sails all arranged, there they go night
and day, watching the floating treasure which serves them for a
habitation, until they reach a market, where it is broken up
and sold. Hardy, daring fellows are the voyageurs, «imple and
kind withal. Though their manners are homely, their hearts are
warm. Heaven speed them down the rapids to a safe arrival and
a profitable sah '>f their hard earned produce.

Both from G iville and Carillon and half way between them,
are roads iciui.

^, back into the mountains, for "the great range
commencing at Labrador and uniting with the Kocky Mountains

**••

}
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runs through this country. The interior of this region is dottedeve^ where with small lakes, which here and there form a variety
to the scenery. In the Township of Wentworth alone, there are
upwards of sixty, plentifully stocked with red and grey trout
inviting the disciple of Isaac Walton fo pursue his favourit^
amusement. Lake Louisa, or Abbott's Lake, is perhaps most
worthy of notice among them all, especially as it is more accessible
than any. It is a beautiful sheet of water, clear as crystal, so that
at the depth of twenty feet, the pebbles which show the bottom
may be counted. It is surrounded by rocks and mountains, which
here jut out far into the water, and there recede in indentations
sometimes as deep as half a mile, forming pleasant little bays.
Ihe lake is about four miles long, by three in breadth, and is
altogether the very fac simile of the largest of the lakes of the
North of England. It is abundantly stocked with fish, principally
the grey trout or Zunge. The Red Trout is also found in it, b«t
not so plentifully. To reach it, we start from Carillon in the
train for Grenville, after engaging a buggy to meet us about four
miles off. Then we proceed at right angles with the Railway, all
the way through the Township of Chatham, and a mile and a half
into that of Wentworth. Here we are at GrenviUe on board the
ste'\mer, and traversing the waters of the Grand River, as the
Ottawa is called

; five miles from Grenville we stop at L'Original
where a itage awaits passenj;ers going to the celebrated Caledonia
bprings, a distance of some 9 miles through a very interesting
country, giving some very picturesque views. The springs are
much frequented by invalids during the summer months, for the
sake of the mineral waters.

As we hurry on with the restless speed of steam, »* e have abun-
dant opportunities of examining the picturesque banks of the
river on both sides, until we come close up to the city.
About two miles below Ottawa, on the north side, theGatineau

T*7r" T"^^
*"'^ '^"^' ^^""" iviver. A lew miies up this stream

the Canada Iron Mining and Manufacturing Company have erected
very extensive furnaces for the purpose of smiting the iron ore
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be.Dg none other thap the Eideau Palls. There t f^lL J^Slvas flowmg drapery falls from the shoulders of aS aIZ
111/ r: u : -^ '

'^ "^ ^ «''«'" «» *o warrant the appellation

vrenuy, gracetulij, the water pours over, and minffle«jwi*fK*liof if

dd toTetrVV"'* ''^ --^ noisTaSTe tty toadd to the effect. We obtum a fine view of if a^ iha a^T.
passes close by. Looking ahead, we nirgef "i^fd viewTfthe Parhameat and Departmental Buildings, stnding ouT soprommen ly on the bluff called Major's Hill These h„«Sin!»only require to be visited to be appLiated All we canIt Igo and see for yourself, dear readeV^ And now we reach Otf».l»City, picturesquely built upon three sepS bkrl JeSforming the river bank of the south side. Eight brfore usS
and tw; ^tt ,^^^f'f^^

-P^ « are immediately above the oitl,and there, with thundering cadence, the waters precipitate thpmelres down the precipice of forty ftet in heighnKthSiDto a basin, bo,
,
and seethe, and hiss, and whirl aromnd in mad

uZTnt'j''''^ *''VP'"^^ ''"^ =""^ the sunbZs gleamlgu^n it form an almost perpetual rainbow. A fine bridee span!the river jus below the Palls, from which a magnificent yiewof^.em 18 obtained. Beside the Grand Pall th.fe T^lso LUtl

prtllLTf%r''^"? ^'^!'- n'T ^ -Ss'ptm'^no:
I dowTthe kttcr 2a r- P""""!, °^ ^^^ ''**«'•« '''»'«h precipitate

Sise tLI ^' •
"'? ""'l.^'-g'-onud, where none can trace

tin g^rufsoJe IdfTfTh •^^^.'="P"°°' quoted from Bouchette,

T, tlfni, i° "^ *''* singular scene. He says. "TheLittle Chaudiere may, without much difficulty, be appoached fromtheLower Canada shore, and the spectator,^;tandiS on aW
J

mrjtt^

1

<**r*

>M

11



J

69

r**»

*4<

S fi ? ""i^^^ H^^ ^°,^ °^ *^^ ^"°^ ^^ *^« yawning gap intowhich he floods are headlong plunged, surveys the whole lenghtof cAt^^e and the depths of the cavei|,. A considerable portionof the waters of the falls necessarily escapes subterraneously, after
their precipitation, as a mu3h greater volume is impelled over the

fn L t"-..^ A"" y?«^^^l^««^«-
Indeed this fact is not peculiar

to the Little Chaudiere, but is one of those curious characters of
this part of the Ottawa of which other singular instances are ob-
served

;
the waters in various places being swallowed by deep but

narrow rents and fissures, leaving their natural bed almost dry, to
dash on through some subterraneous passage that defies the searchof the explorer. There are in the Falls of the Chaudiere materials
tor much geological speculation, and the mere admirer of nature's
scenic wonders and magnificence Tfill derive much gratification
and delight by the survey and contemplation of their manifold
beauties On the northern bank, a slide has been made, so that
the timber can be sent from above to below the foaming waters
without endangering either it being broken by abrupt and rude
collision with kindred logs below, or shattered upon the rock.I hege slides are frequent in the Upper Ottawa, the rocky state of
the river necessitating their construction ; and they are admirably
adapted carrying down the logs of timber safely, and without any
damage to ^.revent a sale in the market. But to return to the city.

OTTAWA,

Like Quebec, is divided into Upper and Lower Towns : although
some make three divisions, adding the Middle and perhaps this
last divwion has the advantage of being more correct. The
Upper Town, as its name implies, occupies the highest part
of the rocky banks, and the Middle and Lower Towns are con-
tented with a less elevated position. The Rideau Canal joins the
Ottawa iiiver, through a gorge between the towns, by a luccession
ot locks.

^
This canal connects the Ottawa with Kingston and Lake

vntano, tixrough a series of lakes and streams. It is 135 miles
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long and forms a triangle with the St. Lawrence and the Ottawa
rivers. The Upper termintb is about 180 miles from Montreal,
while the lower is 120 miles, A handsome bridge spans the gorge
and forms a connection between the towns. As a city, Ottawa
has perhaps the most beautiful and picturesque situation of any
in the Province. Built beside the magnificent Chaudiere, upon
a rocky elevation, commanding a fine view of the surrounding
country, as far as the eye can reach, it is almost equal to Quebec
itself. The fine far-stretching campaign, opened up to a great
extent by hardy settlers, who have cleared for themselves a home
and farm

; the villages nestling among» the trees, the deep dark
forests extf^nding on their hand, as yet apparently untouched by
the woodman's ax3, and the magnificent river, all command by
turns the delighted attention, and call forth unmiugled exclama-
tions of pleasure. The city itself is well built, and the elevation
of the ground has been taken a( vant-^e of, to heighten the effect.

The County BuildiLigs, several banks, good hotels, and churches
of various denominations are situated here.
What the Eideau Canal does for Kingston, the Ottawa and

Prescott Eailroads does for Prescott—^forms a connecting link
with Ottawa City. This line is fifty-four miles in length, and
connects at Prescott with the Grand Trunk Railway, and also,
by means of a ferry, with Ogdeasburgh on the United States
shor«, whence a railroad extends as far as New York.
From Ottawa, many very pleasant excursions can be made into

the country, both by stages and steamboats, running to different
parts, so that every facility is afforded for enjoying to the utmost
extent the romantic scenes which abound on every side. The
only difficulty one has, is created by the want of time to go over
the country thoroughly.

On the bank of the Gatineau River are also situated the mills
of the same name, the propertyof the enterprising firm of Gilmour
& Co., under the able management of John Mather, Esq. These
mills are vfirv ftnmnlf»fA -nrifi* oil fli/» nn/t^acn..,* ^.^.x^.^j...^ i» •

the timber into deals and boards, ard preparing it for the market,

f

«ri>^

>
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taking It in its rough state from the river, squaring it off, and
then discharging it back again to be made up into cribs and floated
down to the Ottawa, and thence to Montreal or Quebec.
Looking at the Ottawa altogether, it is perhaps one of the finest

and most picturesque of all the rivers of Canada ; and when we
consider that it drains a country of about 80,000 superficial miles
we cannot but think that many more years will not pass over'
without a vast change for the better in the land. Clearances
eftected, and comfortable farms and dwellings erected on a soil
abundantly fertile, with still a background of unlimited forest for
the successful prosecution^ the lumber trade; when we look at
all these facts, the conclusion to which we must inevitably come
IS, that PROSPERITY is written in legible characters upon the broad
expanse of country stretching around us. The establishment of
the seat of Government at Ottawa will also tend to open up the
country, and the increase will be great.

t A
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